

MSCI World Variable Decrement Indices

Methodology



June 18th, 2025

Version History

Readers can access other versions of the methodology for the MSCI World Variable Decrement Indices online when they become available on Compass Financial Technologies website (www.compass-ft.com).

Date	Version	Change
June $18^{\text{th}}, 2025$ 1.0		Methodology Publication

Table of Contents

1	Introduction	3
2	Index Calculation	4
	2.1 Definition \ldots	4
	2.2 Calculation of the Index level	4
	2.3 Determination of the $VariableDecrement_t$	4
	2.4 Determination of the Futures Tracker Index Level $FTIL_t$	4
	2.5 Rounding of Data	5
	2.6 Scheduled Business Day	5
	2.7 Calculation frequency and dissemination	5
3	Disruption Events	5
	3.1 Underlying Index Disruption Event	5
4	Index Governance	6
	4.1 Index Owner and Sponsor	6
	4.2 Index Administrator	6
	4.3 Index Calculation Agent	6
	4.4 Index Committees – Supervisor	6
5	Methodology Changes - Maintenance	8
6	Expert Judgment	8
7	Errors and Recalculations	8
8	Exceptional Circumstances	9
9	Cases not covered in rules	9
10	Liability	9
11	Information related to the Parent Index 1	1
12	Notice and Disclaimer	3
13	Contact us	5

1 Introduction

The MSCI World Variable Decrement Indices (the *Index* or the *Indices*) is a family of indices which provides exposure to a *Parent Index* after applying a variable decrement.

Each Index is designed to reflect the performance of a strategy that tracks the Parent Index, while applying a time-varying, daily performance adjustment— termed a variable decrement. This adjustment is based on the observed basis between the relevant Cash Index and the relevant Futures Tracker Index over a trailing period of 20 days.

As a result of the variable decrement mechanism, the Index may generally underperform the Parent Index. In particular, during periods when the trailing 20-day return of the Cash Index exceeds that of the relevant Futures Tracker Index, the applied decrement—scaled by a leverage factor—may increase, leading to a higher percentage performance deduction. The impact of the leverage factors is that any such increases may correspondingly increase the variable decrement and impact Index performance.

The Index can be accessed online on the Compass Financial Technologies website (www.compass-ft.com) or on Bloomberg or Refinitiv.

The Index is owned and sponsored by MSCI. The Index Administrator and Calculation Agent is Compass Financial Technologies.

MSCI World Variable Decrement Indices				
Index Name	Bloomberg Code	Refinitiv Code		
MSCI World Rolling Futures Variable Decrement (7.5x) Index	MXWORFVD Index	.MXWORFVD		
MSCI World 7.5x Variable Decrement (EUR) Index	MXWOGEVD Index	.MXWOGEVD		

Table 1: MSCI World Variable Decrement Indices - Publication Codes

2 Index Calculation

2.1 Definition

- ACT_{t_1,t_2} is defined as the number of calendar days between t_1 and t_2
- Business Day t is any Scheduled Business Day on which no Disruption Event happen
- CIL_t is with respect to Business Day t, the official index level of the Cash Index defined in table 3
- FIL_t is with respect to Business Day t, the official index level of the Underlying Futures Index defined in table 4
- $FTIL_t$ is with respect to Business Day t, the Futures Tracker Index Level as computed in Section 2.4
- IL_t is with respect to Business Day t, the official Index Level as computed in section 2.2
- *Index Component* means the Parent Index or any futures Index or Cash Index used in the computation of the Index
- Leverage is the Leverage used in Section 2.2 and defined in table 2
- t n is the nth Business Day preceding t
- t_0 is the Index Base Date. t_0 means 31^{st} January 2014
- t_{F_0} is the Futures Index Base Date. t_{F_0} means 2nd January 2014
- UIL_t is with respect to Business Day t, the official index level of the Parent Index defined in table 2
- $VariableDecrement_t$ is with respect to Business Day t, the variable decrement as computed in Section 2.3

2.2 Calculation of the Index level

For any Business Day t following t_0 the Index level is determined by:

$$IL_{t} = IL_{t-1} \times \left(\frac{UIL_{t}}{UIL_{t-1}} - Leverage \times VariableDecrement_{t-1} \times \frac{ACT_{t-1,t}}{365}\right)$$

With

$$IL_{t_0} = 100$$

2.3 Determination of the $VariableDecrement_t$

For any Business Day t following or equal to t_0 the VariableDecrement is computed as:

$$VariableDecrement_{t} = \left(\frac{CIL_{t}}{CIL_{t-20}} - \frac{FTIL_{t}}{FTIL_{t-1}}\right) \times \frac{365}{ACT_{t-20,t}}$$

2.4 Determination of the Futures Tracker Index Level $FTIL_t$

Each Futures Tracker Index is derived from the corresponding Excess Return Index as specified in table 4. In addition to the uncollateralized return generated from the futures contracts, a daily fixed income return is added to the daily excess return according to the following:

On t_{F_0} ,

$$FTIL_{t_{F_0}} = 100$$

On each Index Business Day t following t_{F_0} , $FTIL_t$, on t is calculated according to the following formula:

$$FTIL_{t} = FTIL_{t-1} \times \left(\frac{FIL_{t}}{FIL_{t-1}} + DRR_{t-1} \times \frac{b1}{b2}\right)$$

Where,

- DRR_{t-1} , the Daily Reference Rate, means, in respect of a specific Business Day t, the "Daily Interest Rate" effective on the preceding Business Day t-1 as specified in table 4. In the event that no level is available on t in respect of a specific Business Day t-1, the immediately preceding level on a relevant Business Day shall be used
- b1 and b2 are defined in table 4

2.5 Rounding of Data

The Index level is calculated without rounding, the publication is rounded to 4 decimals.

2.6 Scheduled Business Day

A Scheduled Business Day is a day that is both open for trading on NYSE and EUREX.

2.7 Calculation frequency and dissemination

The Index is calculated and published once a day on every Business Day.

Index levels are published on the Compass Financial Technologies website (www.compass-ft.com) and are distributed to Bloomberg and Refinitiv under the ticker symbols listed in table 1.

3 Disruption Events

If any Disruption Event occurs on any Scheduled Business Day for any Index component, then the Calculation Agent may:

- publish its good faith estimate of the Index Level for that Business Day (notwithstanding the occurrence of a Disruption Event) using its good faith estimate of the value of the Index Component affected by the occurrence of a Disruption Event. Any such estimate may be subject to VariableDecrement once the relevant Disruption Event has ceased to exist; and/or
- suspend the calculation and dissemination of the Index and the Index Level until the first succeeding Business Day which is not affected by a Disruption Event for any Index Component.

Disruption Event means any of the disruption events listed below and affecting the Index Components

3.1 Underlying Index Disruption Event

"Underlying Index Disruption Event" means, in relation to an Index Component that is itself an index, the non-publication of the level of such index, or the occurrence of a "disruption event" by the Calculation Agent of such index.

4 Index Governance

4.1 Index Owner and Sponsor

MSCI is owner and sponsor of the Index.

4.2 Index Administrator

Compass Financial Technologies (France) is the Administrator of the Index ("the Index Administrator"). The Index Administrator is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Index and is also responsible for decisions regarding the interpretation of these rules.

4.3 Index Calculation Agent

Compass Financial Technologies is the Calculation Agent of the Index. It is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Index computation according to this methodology.

4.4 Index Committees – Supervisor

Compass Financial Technologies has established governance functions to review and provide challenges on all aspects of the Index determination process. Governance functions are managed by the Compass Oversight Committee and by the Index Steering Committee, collectively referred to as the Supervisor.

Compass Oversight Committee:

The Compass Oversight Committee oversees all areas of the benchmark determination processes. It is responsible for supervising and controlling the Index operations team on all Compass indices. It is also responsible for:

- 1. Periodic review of incidents
- 2. Making final decisions in case the Index operations team are not capable or allowed to take decisions
- 3. Defining and implementing organisation procedures for the Index operations team
- 4. Defining and overseeing measures that allow for mitigation of operational risks
- 5. Supervising internal or external audit results
- 6. The implementation and supervision of the potential codes of conduct that have to be implemented

The Committee is comprised of senior representatives of Compass Financial Technologies and external industry experts.

Index Steering Committee (the Steering Committee):

The Steering Committee is responsible for:

- 1. Determining the calculation methodology and the rules governing the publication of the Index
- 2. Making periodic reviews of the Index to validate the robustness of the methodology and to analyse the impact of methodology changes
- 3. Organising consultation with Index stakeholders if necessary
- 4. Ensuring that Index offers a reliable and representative view of the market

The Steering Committee is composed of members from Compass and MSCI. The Steering Committee may include individuals or representatives of companies, academics, external counsels, or market participants.

The Steering Committee assembles once a year. However, at the request of a member of the committee, the Steering Committee may meet on any other day of the year to discuss potential "market emergency" and "force majeure" events or any other situation, which makes an extraordinary meeting necessary.

All Committee decisions will be published without delay following the Committee decision. The Steering Committee members as of June 2025 are:

- Edouard Mouton, Compass Financial Technologies
- Guillaume Le Fur, Compass Financial Technologies
- a member of the MSCI Equity Index Committee
- a member of the MSCI Structured Products New Product Development Team

As of June $18^{\rm th},\,2025,\,{\rm Guillaume}$ Le Fur chairs the Steering Committee.

5 Methodology Changes - Maintenance

This methodology may be supplemented, amended in whole or in part, revised or withdrawn at any time. Supplements, amendments, revisions and withdrawals may also lead to changes in the way the Index is compiled or calculated or affect the Index in another way.

In the absence of exceptional circumstances affecting the Index calculation or methodology, this Methodology is reviewed annually. The review will includes, inter alia, the following points:

- 1. Verify if the methodology and computation are still in line with the original purpose of the Index
- 2. Make sure the quality and quantity of the input data remain sufficient

Changes made to this methodology are published after the review date and implemented on a reasonable time horizon.

Compass Financial Technologies may terminate the Index due to certain extraordinary market circumstances.

Changes or termination will be subject to the review and approval of the Steering Committee which will receive all the information related to the change or termination. In case of material changes, a notice will be provided at least two weeks in advance.

In the case of a termination that is not linked to extraordinary events that would prevent the Index Administrator from maintaining the Index, a notice will be provided at least 3 months in advance.

The results of the Steering Committee meetings will be published in a press release on Compass Financial Technologies website and distributed timely to data vendors and major news sources.

6 Expert Judgment

The Index is based on written and transparent rules and procedures with the purpose of minimising as much as possible the exercise of discretion and expert judgment.

Nevertheless, the exercise of expert judgment may become necessary in case of errors and Index restatements, delayed and missing data, or unexpected situations arising from market stress.

In the event that expert judgment is exercised, this will be done by resorting to the written procedures reported in the methodology and by communicating the decisions taken to the Steering Committee and the Internal Compliance Function in order to prevent conflicts of interest and to protect the integrity and the independence of the Index determinations. In addition, the interest of the Index users and the market integrity will be taken into account.

7 Errors and Recalculations

Even though the process of each Index calculation is completely automated and pre-defined, an error can be discovered after the publication of the Index.

Such errors may be caused by a range of events including :

- Incorrect or restated input data (prices, rates, index levels which are incorrect or have been updated by exchanges or data provider) or incorrect ancillary data (errors in the index calendar data,...) or,
- Incorrect application of the Index methodology (error in the implementation and/ or application of the index methodology).

The Index Administrator has implemented a wide range of automated checks to capture and validate exceptions which could indicate an error or data problem. These include checks on large or unexpected constituentlevel price movements and large or unexpected Index-level movements. Additional comparative and consistency checks are also in place. All exceptions or warning alerts are reviewed and analyzed by the Index Administrator.

In the instance an error is not identified and resolved before the Index calculation and publication, or if input data received is revised retrospectively, the Index Administrator will review the impact on the Index. The decision to restate the Index is based on different factors including:

- When the error or input data restatement occurred and when it was discovered
- The magnitude of the error
- Whether the impacted Index is linked to tradable products

In the case of Index levels have to be restated, the Index Administrator will:

- Inform as soon as possible its customers and Index stakeholders
- Republish the Index values

In the case where a material error is discovered and the Index Administrator recognises a manipulation or an attempted manipulation of any of the Index level or the input data, it will be reported to the regulator.

8 Exceptional Circumstances

Exceptional circumstances, including the occurrence of a Disruptive Event, which make the calculation or replication of the Index not possible may lead to the following actions:

- the Calculation Agent may exercise certain discretionary powers under the Index Methodology
- the Calculation Agent may suspend the calculation and publication of the Index levels
- the Administrator of the Index may make an amendment or change to these Index Rules
- the Index Administrator may suspend and terminate the Index

The existence of exceptional circumstances may also result in the postponement of the calculation and dissemination of the Index to a later date than provided for in the Index Methodology.

9 Cases not covered in rules

In cases which are not expressly covered in these rules, operational adjustments will take place along the lines of the aim of the Index. Operational adjustments may also take place if, in the opinion of the Index Administrator, it is desirable to do so to maintain a fair and orderly market in derivatives on the Index and/or this is in the best interests of the investors in products based on the Index and/or the proper functioning of the markets. The Index Administrator will report to the Supervisor if it took a decision about a case which is not specifically covered in the rules for comments and review.

10 Liability

The Index Administrator and the Supervisor are not liable for any losses resulting from supplementing, amending, revising or withdrawing the rules for every Index. The Administrator will do everything within its power to ensure the accuracy of the composition, calculation, publication and adjustment of the Index in accordance with relevant rules. However, neither the Index Administrator, nor the Supervisor are liable for any inaccuracy in the Index composition, calculation and the publication of the Index levels, the information

used for making adjustments to the Index and the actual adjustments. Furthermore, the Index Administrator and the Supervisor do not guarantee the continuity of the composition of any of the Index, the continuity of the method of calculation of the Index, the continuity of the dissemination of the Index levels, and the continuity of the calculation of the Index.

11 Information related to the Parent Index

Parent Index - Methodology

http://www.msci.com/index/methodology/latest/GIMI

Parent Index - Corporate Events Methodology

https://www.msci.com/index/methodology/latest/CE

Parent Index - Index Policy

https://www.msci.com/documents/10199/63cc6c6a-6709-a83e-16b9-e5acdcb07083

Parent Index - Index constituents

https://www.msci.com/constituents

Appendix

Indices - Parent Index and Leverage

Index Name	Parent Index	Leverage
MSCI World Rolling Futures Variable Decrement (7.5x) Index	MSCI World Futures 5 Days Roll Index Total	7.5
	Return	
MSCI World 7.5x Variable Decrement (EUR) Index	MSCI World Gross EUR Index	7.5

Table 2: Indices - Parent Index and Leverage

Variable Decrement parameters: Cash Indices & Futures Indices

Index Bloomberg Code	Cash Index	Futures Index
MXWORFVD	MSCI World Gross USD Index	MSCI World Futures 5 Days Roll Index Total Return
MXWOGEVD	MSCI World Gross USD Index	MSCI World Futures 5 Days Roll Index Total Return

Table 3: Vairable Decrement - Cash and Futures Indices

Futures Tracker Indices

MSCI Rolling Futures Indices - Total Return					
Index Name	Excesss Return Index	Daily Reference Rate	b1	b2	
MSCI World Futures 5 Days Roll	MSCI World Futures 5 Days Roll	Secured Overnight Financing Rate	ACT_{t-1}	,t 360	
Index Total Return	Index	$(SOFR)^{-1}$			

 Table 4: Futures Tracker Indices - Parameters

¹Before April 4nd, 2018, the ICE LIBOR USD 3 Month observed on Business Day t as displayed on Refinitiv (USD3MFSR=) or any successor page for such Business Day t is used. If such rate dated as of t is missing, it means the latest rate available

12 Notice and Disclaimer

Compass Financial Technologies SA:

Nothing contained herein shall constitute or shall be deemed to constitute a financial, legal, tax or other advice of any kind, or a solicitation to purchase, sell or invest in any financial products or to engage in any financial strategy. Compass Financial Technologies SA or any of its affiliates ("Compass") (i) does not guarantee the adequacy, the accuracy, the timeliness, the completeness, the evolution and/or the movements of its indices or any data included therein (the "Indices" or the "Index"), (ii) shall not have any liability for any errors, omissions, delays or interruptions therein and (iii) makes no warranty, express or implied, as to results to be obtained by owners of any securities, or by any other person or entity from the use of the Indices. Compass does not make any express or implied warranties, and expressly disclaims, all warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use with respect to the Indices. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall Compass have any liability for any lost profits or indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages or losses, even if notified of the possibility thereof.

MSCI:

This document and all of the information contained in it, including without limitation all text, data, graphs, charts (collectively, the "Information") is the property of MSCI Inc. or its subsidiaries (collectively, "MSCI"), or MSCI's licensors, direct or indirect suppliers or any third party involved in making or compiling any Information (collectively, with MSCI, the "Information Providers") and is provided for informational purposes only. The Information may not be modified, reverse-engineered, reproduced or redisseminated in whole or in part without prior written permission from MSCI. All rights in the Information are reserved by MSCI and/or its Information Providers. The Information may not be used to create derivative works or to verify or correct other data or information. For example (but without limitation), the Information may not be used to create indexes, databases, risk models, analytics, software, or in connection with the issuing, offering, sponsoring, managing or marketing of any securities, portfolios, financial products or other investment vehicles utilizing or based on, linked to, tracking or otherwise derived from the Information or any other MSCI data, information, products or services. The user of the Information assumes the entire risk of any use it may make or permit to be made of the Information. NONE OF THE INFORMATION PROVIDERS MAKES ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE INFOR-MATION (OR THE RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED BY THE USE THEREOF), AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, EACH INFORMATION PROVIDER EXPRESSLY DIS-CLAIMS ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WAR-RANTIES OF ORIGINALITY, ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, NON-INFRINGEMENT, COMPLETENESS. MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE) WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE INFORMATION. Without limiting any of the foregoing and to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, in no event shall any Information Provider have any liability regarding any of the Information for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential (including lost profits) or any other damages even if notified of the possibility of such damages. The foregoing shall not exclude or limit any liability that may not by applicable law be excluded or limited, including without limitation (as applicable), any liability for death or personal injury to the extent that such injury results from the negligence or willful default of itself, its servants, agents or sub-contractors. Information containing any historical information, data or analysis should not be taken as an indication or guarantee of any future performance, analysis, forecast or prediction. Past performance does not guarantee future results. The Information should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment and other business decisions. All Information is impersonal and not tailored to the needs of any person, entity or group of persons. None of the Information constitutes an offer to sell (or a solicitation of an offer to buy), any security, financial product or other investment vehicle or any trading strategy. It is not possible to invest directly in an index. Exposure to an asset class or trading strategy or other category represented by an index is only available through third party investable instruments (if any) based on that index. MSCI does not issue, sponsor, endorse, market, offer, review or otherwise express any opinion regarding any fund, ETF, derivative or other security, investment, financial product or trading strategy that is based on, linked to or seeks to provide an investment return related to the performance of any MSCI index (collectively, "Index Linked Investments"). MSCI makes no assurance that any Index

Linked Investments will accurately track index performance or provide positive investment returns. MSCI Inc. is not an investment adviser or fiduciary and MSCI makes no representation regarding the advisability of investing in any Index Linked Investments. Index returns do not represent the results of actual trading of investible assets/securities. MSCI maintains and calculates indexes, but does not manage actual assets. The calculation of indexes and index returns may deviate from the stated methodology. Index returns do not reflect payment of any sales charges or fees an investor may pay to purchase the securities underlying the index or Index Linked Investments. The imposition of these fees and charges would cause the performance of an Index Linked Investment to be different than the MSCI index performance. The Information may contain back tested data. Back-tested performance is not actual performance, but is hypothetical. There are frequently material differences between back tested performance results and actual results subsequently achieved by any investment strategy. Constituents of MSCI equity indexes are listed companies, which are included in or excluded from the indexes according to the application of the relevant index methodologies. Accordingly, constituents in MSCI equity indexes may include MSCI Inc., clients of MSCI or suppliers to MSCI. Inclusion of a security within an MSCI index is not a recommendation by MSCI to buy, sell, or hold such security, nor is it considered to be investment advice. Data and information produced by various affiliates of MSCI Inc., including MSCI ESG Research LLC and Barra LLC, may be used in calculating certain MSCI indexes. More information can be found in the relevant index methodologies on www.msci.com. MSCI receives compensation in connection with licensing its indexes to third parties. MSCI Inc.'s revenue includes fees based on assets in Index Linked Investments. Information can be found in MSCI Inc.'s company filings on the Investor Relations section of msci.com. MSCI ESG Research LLC is a Registered Investment Adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and a subsidiary of MSCI Inc. Neither MSCI nor any of its products or services recommends, endorses, approves or otherwise expresses any opinion regarding any issuer, securities, financial products or instruments or trading strategies and MSCI's products or services are not a recommendation to make (or refrain from making) any kind of investment decision and may not be relied on as such, provided that applicable products or services from MSCI ESG Research may constitute investment advice. MSCI ESG Research materials, including materials utilized in any MSCI ESG Indexes or other products, have not been submitted to, nor received approval from, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any other regulatory body. MSCI ESG and climate ratings, research and data are produced by MSCI ESG Research LLC, a subsidiary of MSCI Inc. MSCI ESG Indexes, Analytics and Real Estate are products of MSCI Inc. that utilize information from MSCI ESG Research LLC. MSCI Indexes are administered by MSCI Limited (UK). Please note that the issuers mentioned in MSCI ESG Research materials sometimes have commercial relationships with MSCI ESG Research and/or MSCI Inc. (collectively, "MSCI") and that these relationships create potential conflicts of interest. In some cases, the issuers or their affiliates purchase research or other products or services from one or more MSCI affiliates. In other cases, MSCI ESG Research rates financial products such as mutual funds or ETFs that are managed by MSCI's clients or their affiliates, or are based on MSCI Inc. Indexes. In addition, constituents in MSCI Inc. equity indexes include companies that subscribe to MSCI products or services. In some cases, MSCI clients pay fees based in whole or part on the assets they manage. MSCI ESG Research has taken a number of steps to mitigate potential conflicts of interest and safeguard the integrity and independence of its research and ratings. More information about these conflict mitigation measures is available in our Form ADV, available at https://adviserinfo.sec.gov/firm/summary/169222. Any use of or access to products, services or information of MSCI requires a license from MSCI. MSCI, Barra, RiskMetrics, IPD and other MSCI brands and product names are the trademarks, service marks, or registered trademarks of MSCI or its subsidiaries in the United States and other jurisdictions. The Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) was developed by and is the exclusive property of MSCI and SP Global Market Intelligence. "Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS)" is a service mark of MSCI and SP Global Market Intelligence. MIFID2/MIFIR notice: MSCI ESG Research LLC does not distribute or act as an intermediary for financial instruments or structured deposits, nor does it deal on its own account, provide execution services for others or manage client accounts. No MSCI ESG Research product or service supports, promotes or is intended to support or promote any such activity. MSCI ESG Research is an independent provider of ESG data. Privacy notice: For information about how MSCI collects and uses personal data, please refer to our Privacy Notice at www.msci.com/privacy-pledge

13 Contact us



www.compass-ft.com/contact info@compass-ft.com

About Compass Financial Technologies

Compass Financial Technologies SA is an independent Swiss-based company focused on the design, calculation, and administration of market benchmarks and tailor-made quantitative investment strategies. Founded in 2017, Compass has locations in Lausanne, Paris, and New York. For more than 20 years, the team at Compass has been developing recognized benchmarks ranging from simple vanilla indices to complex index strategies based on quantitative models and market intelligence. Compass calculates nearly 2,000 indices for institutional clients, from investment banks and pension funds to asset managers related to all asset classes. Compass Financial Technologies (France) is a registered Benchmarks Administrator by the Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) under the EU Benchmarks Regulations (EU BMR).

To learn more, please visit www.compass-ft.com.



www.msci.com/contact-us

AMERICAS

Americas 1 888 588 4567^{*2} Atlanta + 1 404 551 3212 Boston + 1 617 532 0920 Chicago + 1 312 675 0545 Monterrey + 52 81 1253 4020 New York + 1 212 804 3901 San Francisco + 1 415 836 8800 São Paulo + 55 11 3706 1360 Toronto + 1 416 628 1007

About MSCI

MSCI is a leading provider of critical decision support tools and services for the global investment community. With over 50 years of expertise in research, data and technology, we power better investment decisions by enabling clients to understand and analyze key drivers of risk and return and confidently build more effective portfolios. We create industry-leading researchenhanced solutions that clients use to gain insight into and improve transparency across the investment process.

To learn more, please visit www.msci.com.

The process for submitting a formal index complaint can be found on the index regulation page of MSCI's website at: www.msci.com/index-regulation.

 2* toll-free

EUROPE, MIDDLE EAST & ASIA PACIFIC AFRICA

Cape Town + 27 21 673 0100 Frankfurt + 49 69 133 859 00 Geneva + 41 22 817 9777 London + 44 20 7618 2222 Milan + 39 02 5849 0415 Paris 0800 91 59 17* China North 10800 852 1032* China South 10800 152 1032* Hong Kong + 852 2844 9333 Mumbai + 91 22 6784 9160 Seoul 00798 8521 3392* Singapore 800 852 3749* Sydney + 61 2 9033 9333 Taipei 008 0112 7513* Thailand 0018 0015 6207 7181* Tokyo + 81 3 5290 1555